
STATE BAR OF MICHIGAN 
MEETING OF THE COUNCIL OF THE BUSINESS LAW SECTION 

Thursday,  March 9, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. 
State Bar of Michigan, 306 Townsend Street, Lansing 

Dial In 866-906-0123/Pass code: 5942092 

AGENDA 

1. Call to order and determination of quorum 

2. Approval of Minutes of  December 1, 2022 Meeting of  the Council and December 19, 2022 Special Meeting 
of the Counsel 

3. Treasurer’s Report  

4. Chair’s Report 

5. Committee/Directorship Reports 

A. Standing Committees: 
i.  Business Courts 
ii. Commercial Litigation 
iii. Corporate Law 
iv. Debtor/Creditor Rights 

a. Proposed New Rule MCR 2.421 
v. Financial Institutions 
vi. In-House Counsel 
vii. Law Schools 
viii. LLC & Partnerships 
ix. Nonprofit Corporations 
x. Privately Held Businesses Forum 
xi. Regulation of Securities 
xii. Uniform Commercial Code 

B. Ad Hoc Committees: 
i. Strategic Plan 
ii. Soaring Pine Capital v Park Street Group Amicus  

C. Directorships: 
i. Communication & Development 
ii. Diversity & Inclusion 
iii. Legislative Review 
iv. Nominating 
v. Programs 

a. ICLE Liaison  
vi. Publications 

6. Other Business and Announcements 

7. Announcement of  Thursday, June 8, 2023 at 3 p.m. Council Meeting at Dickinson Wright in Troy 

8. Meeting Adjournment  

Dinner Immediately Following at Lucky’s Steakhouse, 3554 Okemos Rd, Okemos 



1 

STATE BAR OF MICHIGAN - BUSINESS LAW SECTION 

COUNCIL MINUTES 

This meeting of the Council of the Business Law Section of the State Bar of Michigan was 
held via Zoom on December 1, 2022 pursuant to notice duly given. Council members present were, 
Amber Beebe, Brendan Cahill, Bruce Haffey, Mark Kellogg, Carrie Leahy, Michael Molitor, Ryan 
Opel, Scott Timmer, Victoria Valentine, and Christopher Yates. Committee Chairs and Directors 
present were Celeste Arduino, Kevin Block, Judy Calton, Kimberly Clayson, Marguerite Donahue, 
Dee Fuller, Loukas Kalliantasis, Justin Klimko, Gerard Mantese, Mark Peters, John Schuring, and 
Douglas Toering.  Others present were Jennifer Consiglio, Talia Dahbour, Alexis Lupo, Max 
Mathies, and Terri Shoop. 

1. Call to Order and Determination of Quorum. Section Chair, Mark Kellogg, called 
the meeting to order at approximately 3:00 p.m. and determined that a quorum was present. 

2. Approval of Minutes of October 7, 2022 and October 8, 2022 Council Meetings. A 
motion to approve the Minutes of the October 7, 2022 and October 8, 2022 Council meetings was 
made, seconded, and passed unanimously, 10-0-0.  

3. Treasurer's Report.  A written report was provided by the Treasurer. Mr. Kellogg 
reported that we have had an increase in the fund balance, possibly due to increased membership. 

4. Chair's Report.   

5. Committee/Directorship Reports. 

A. Standing Committees. 

(i) Business Courts Committee.  Written reports have been provided by 
the Business Courts Committee.  

(ii) Commercial Litigation Committee. Written reports have been 
provided by the Commercial Litigation Committee. Mr. Toering reported that the Committee is 
continuing to look into Business Litigation Boot Camp. Mr. Toering will be discussing the possibly 
of a joint Business Boot Camp/Business Litigation Boot Camp program with Dan Minkus.

(iii) Corporate Laws Committee. Written reports have been provided by 
the Corporate Laws Committee.  

(iv) Debtor/Creditor Rights Committee. A written report has been 
provided by the Debtor/Creditor Rights Committee.  

(v) Financial Institutions Committee. No report.  

(vi) In-House Counsel Committee.  No report.  



2 

(vii) Law Schools Committee.  Written reports have been provided by the 
Law Schools Committee. Mr. Kellogg reported that a recent event was held with MSU Law 
School. In addition, he has been contacted by students at WSU Law School. They would like to 
have some kind of event with the Section in 2023. If you’d like to serve as a law school liaison, 
please contact Mr. Kellogg.  

(viii) LLC & Partnership Committee. Written reports have been provided 
by the LLC & Partnership Committee. Mr. Kalliantasis reported that Mr. Mantese has an interest 
in becoming co-chair of the Committee. A motion was made to appoint Gerard Mantese as Co-
Chair of the LLC & Partnership Committee. The motion was seconded and passed unanimously, 
10-0-0. 

(ix) Nonprofit Corporations Committee.  Written reports have been 
provided by the Nonprofit Corporations Committee.   

(x) Regulation of Securities Committee. No report. 

(xi) Privately Held Businesses Forum.  Written reports have been 
provided by the Privately Held Businesses Forum.  

(xii) Uniform Commercial Code Committee.  A written report has been 
provided by the Uniform Commercial Code Committee. 

B. Ad Hoc Committees: 

(i)  Strategic Plan. Mr. Schuring reported that the Committee is 
ongoing. The timeline has been reset.  

(ii) Soaring Pine Capital v Park Street Group Amicus. The Committee 
continues to work on Brief in this matter. 

B. Directorships. 

(i) Communication & Development Directorship.  Written reports have 
been provided by the Communication & Development Directorship. Mr. Schuring will be chairing 
the Directorship. The Directorship is working to identify social media/public relations assistance. 

(ii) Diversity & Inclusion Directorship. A written report has been 
provided by the Diversity & Inclusion Directorship. Ms. Beebe proposed that the Directorship use 
funds on Constant Contact as a way to improve communication with the group. A motion was 
made use Constant Contact as a method of communication and collaboration amongst committee 
members and would-be members. The motion was seconded and pass unanimously, 10-0-0. 

(iii) Legislative Review Directorship. A written report has been provided 
by the Legislative Review Director. 

(iv) Nominating Directorship.  A written report has been provided by the 
Nominating Director. Ms. Fuller is resigning as Nominating Director effective immediately.  



3 

(v) Programs Directorship. Written reports have been provided by the 
Programs Directorship.  

a. ICLE Liaison. Written reports have been provided by the 
ICLE Liaison. Ms. Donahue reported on various on-demand webinars that ICLE is requesting 
Section co-sponsorship. There is no cost to the Section for this co-sponsorship. A motion was 
made to approve Section co-sponsorship of the following ICLE on demand webinars that are 
intended to be recorded in early 2023:  

Corporate Transparency Update; 

Representations and Warranties Insurance in M&A Transactions;  

Litigating in Business Court – Tips and Tricks; and  

Business Entity Update 2023. 

The motion was seconded and passed unanimously, 10-0-0. 

(vi) Publications Directorship.  A written report was provided by the 
Publications Director. 

6. Other Business and Announcements.  None. 

7. Announcement Council Meeting - March 9, 2023 at 3 p.m..  The next meeting of 
the Business Law Section Council will be held on March 9, 2023 in Lansing.  

8. Meeting Adjournment. There being no further business to come before the Council 
of the Business Law Section, upon motion duly made and seconded, the motion passed 
unanimously, 10-0-0. The meeting was adjourned at 4 p.m. 

____________________________________ 
Michael Molitor 
Secretary 



STATE BAR OF MICHIGAN – BUSINESS LAW SECTION 
MINUTES OF SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

December 19, 2022 

Pursuant to notice duly given, and pursuant to Article VI, Section 10 of the Bylaws of the 
Business Law Section of the State Bar of Michigan, a special meeting of the Council of the 
Business Law Section was held on December 19, 2022 by Zoom. Council members present were 
Amber Beebe, Patrick Haddad, Bruce Haffey, Laura Johnson, Mark Kellogg, Michael Molitor, 
Ryan Opel, J. Scott Timmer, and Christopher Yates. In addition, Committee Chairs, Directors, and 
Liaisons present were David Barton, Judy Calton, Kimberly Clayson, Justin Klimko, Judith Miller, 
and Douglas Toering.  Others present were Fawzieh Daher and Terri Shoop.   

1. Call to order and determination of quorum. Section Chair Mark Kellogg called the 
meeting to order at approximately 4:00 p.m. and determined that a quorum was present. 

2. Waiver of Required Notice of Special Meeting Under Section 10 of Article VI of 
the Bylaws.  A motion was made to waive the required notice of a special meeting of the Council 
pursuant to Section 10 Article VI of the Bylaws. The motion was seconded and passed 
unanimously, 9-0-0. 

3. Purpose of Meeting :  Review and approval of the following regarding Soaring Pine 
Capital Real Estate v Park Street Group Realty, et al. (a) Motion to File a Brief Amicus Curiae, 
and (b) Draft SBM BLS Amicus Brief.  Ms. Miller reported on the Soaring Pine matter set for 
hearing on January 10 or 11. She discussed the history of bringing the matter to Council at the 
June meeting believing the matter of significant import to business law and the business 
community. Council approved forming an Ad Hoc Committee to review the matter. It is critical 
that the brief be filed no later than December 21 to allow the Supreme Court Justices adequate 
time for review prior to the hearing. The Ad Hoc Committee is supportive of the Motion and Brief 
in their current form. Ms. Calton opened the floor to questions and comments and a discussion 
ensued regarding the various issues. A motion was made to approve the Motion and Brief as 
written with authority to make any non-substantive changes needed and to fill in the appropriate 
blanks and file the documents. A public policy vote was taken with the Council members present: 

Amber Beebe - Yes 

Patrick Haddad - Yes 

Bruce Haffey -  Yes 

Laura Johnson - Yes 

Mark Kellogg - Yes 

Michael Molitor - Yes 



Ryan Opel -  Yes 

Scott Timmer - Yes 

Christopher Yates - Yes 

The motion passed unanimously, 9-0-0. Ms. Daher will revise the documents to fill in the blanks 
and file them by December 21. 

4. Meeting Adjournment. There being no further business to come before the Council 
of the Business Law Section, upon motion duly made, seconded, and unanimously approved, the 
meeting was adjourned at 4:30 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

By_______________________________________ 
Michael Molitor 
  Secretary 





















BUSINESS COURTS COMMITTEE 
REPORT PREPARED FOR THE MARCH 9, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

1. Next Scheduled Meeting of the Committee. 

No meeting of the Committee is currently scheduled.   

2. Council Approval. 

No matters require Council approval. 

3. Membership.

The membership of the Committee is intentionally small. The members are 
Judge James M. Alexander (retired Oakland), Judge David J. Allen 
(Wayne), Judge Victoria A. Valentine (Oakland), Judge Kathryn A. Viviano 
(Macomb), Judge Christopher P. Yates (Court of Appeals), Bruce Courtade, 
Jennifer Grieco, Brian Wassom, and yours truly.   

4. Accomplishments Toward Committee Objectives.

The Committee’s objectives are to serve as a liaison between the Business 
Court Judges and the Business Law Section, to serve as a resource for the 
Business Court Judges, and to assist the Business Court Judges in 
whatever ways they and the Business Law Section deem appropriate.   

5. Meetings and Programs.

The Committee has not met since the last Council meeting.    

6. Publications.

The Committee has published no articles.  The Michigan Business Law 
Journal includes a regular column on the Michigan Business Courts.   

7. Methods of Monitoring Legislative/Judicial/Administrative 
Developments and Recommended Action.

The Committee monitors proposed changes in the business court statute 
and Michigan Court Rules that deal with the Michigan Business Courts. 

8. Miscellaneous. 



Douglas L. Toering, Committee Chair 
Mantese Honigman, PC 
1361 E. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48083 
(248) 457-9200 
dtoering@manteselaw.com 

Date of Report:  March 1, 2023 



COMMERCIAL LITIGATION COMMITTEE 
REPORT PREPARED FOR THE MARCH 9, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

1. Next Scheduled Meeting of the Committee. 

No meeting of the Committee is currently scheduled.   

2. Council Approval. 

No matters require Council approval.    

3. Membership.

The Committee comprises approximately 100 commercial litigators.   

4. Accomplishments Toward Committee Objectives.

The Committee Chair is exploring how the proposed Business Litigation 
Bootcamp might interrelate with the Business Boot Camp.   

The Committee expects to hold a program in second or third quarter of 
2023 to celebrate the tenth anniversary of the business court legislation 
and to discuss best practices of the business courts.   

5. Meetings and Programs.

No meetings or programs have been held since the last Council meeting. 

6. Publications. 

The Committee has published no articles.   

7. Methods of Monitoring Legislative/Judicial/Administrative 
Developments and Recommended Action.

The Commercial Litigation Committee typically receives notices of 
proposed legislation or changes to the Michigan Court Rules.  When the 
Committee is informed of potential changes to the Michigan Court Rules 
or proposed legislation that may impact the practice of Committee 
members, the Committee engages in an e-mail or in-person discussion of 
such proposed changes or legislation.   

8. Miscellaneous.

Douglas L. Toering, Committee Chair 



Mantese Honigman, PC 
1361 E. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48083 
(248) 457-9200 
dtoering@manteselaw.com 

Date of Report:  March 1, 2023 



IBUTZEL\999999999\0901\4361177.v98-2/5/23

CORPORATE LAWS COMMITTEE
REPORT PREPARED FOR THE MARCH 9, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING

1. Next Scheduled Meeting of the Committee.

The Committee most recently met on January 25 to discuss development of amendments to the 
Michigan Business Corporation in addition to the proposed benefit corporation legislation that it has 
developed as described in previous committee reports.  The Committee’s next meeting has not yet been 
scheduled, pending circulation of draft language for proposed amendments.

2. Council Approval.

We do not request council approval of any matters at this meeting.

3. Membership.

The Committee remains open to participation by any interested parties.  The Committee has 
approximately 75 members on its active roster, though many fewer who actively participate.

4. Accomplishments Toward Committee Objectives.

The activity of the Committee is directly related to the Strategic Plan mission of promoting 
improved legislation and regulation for business and the goal of reviewing Michigan laws affecting 
business formation, capital raising, corporate governance and related legal matters.  The Committee 
attempts to keep Michigan corporate law current with national trends and competitive with the business 
law environments of other jurisdictions.

The Committee continues to monitor legislation that could affect Michigan corporation law.  We 
are assembling material for the next round of amendments to the Michigan Business Corporation Act.  IN 
2022, we determined to bifurcate that effort and to first focus on preparing proposed draft benefit 
corporation legislation, which we prepared in the hope to move the bill prior to the end of the legislative 
session.  That did not happen, but we are pursuing that initiative in the new legislative session.  
Legislative adoption of the additional amendments, once developed, will also be pursued in the new 
session.

In the past the Committee has taken the lead in preparing amicus briefs on behalf of the Business 
Law Section, at the request of both the Michigan Court of Appeals and the request of the Michigan 
Supreme Court.  Justin Klimko participated in the development of the Section’s most recent amicus brief 
filed with the Michigan Supreme Court in the case of Soaring Pine Capital v. Park Street Group Realty 
Services.  That brief addressed the Supreme Court’s question as to whether usury savings clauses in loan 
arrangements violate Michigan public policy and argued that such clauses should not be found to violate 
public policy.

5. Meetings and Programs.

No programs are currently scheduled. However, members of the Committee have participated in 
various programs, including the February 16 Business Law Symposium.

6. Publications.

The Committee was responsible for the Fall 2020 edition of the Business Law Journal.  Members 
of the Committee’s oppression study group contributed a number of articles for this issue related to the 
topics considered by the study group.  The Committee will be responsible for the Fall 2023 issue and is 
developing articles from Committee members and their organizations.



2
IBUTZEL\999999999\0901\4361177.v98-2/5/23

7. Methods of Monitoring Legislative/Judicial/Administrative Developments and Recommended 
Action.

The Committee monitors bills that would affect corporation statutes that are introduced without 
its input and considers these together with the Corporations Division of the Bureau of Commercial 
Services of the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs.  The Committee interacts with the 
Division and the Bureau frequently on matters of legislative interpretation and administrative practice.  
The Committee also consults with the Division regarding efforts to further streamline corporate filings 
and information dissemination.

The Committee reviews judicial decisions affecting matters of Michigan corporate law.  From 
time to time the Committee proposes statutory amendments that are intended to address the effects of 
specific case law.  Additionally, the Committee has prepared and filed amicus curiae briefs at the 
invitation of the Michigan Supreme Court.

The Committee monitors developments and changes in the corporate laws of other states such as 
Delaware and developments and changes in the Model Business Corporation Act.  

8. Miscellaneous.

The Committee will continue to accept ideas for technical and other amendments to the Business 
Corporation Act.  Suggestions in this regard may be addressed to either committee co-chair.  

Any questions regarding this report may be directed to Justin Klimko or Mike Molitor.

Justin G. Klimko
Butzel Long
150 West Jefferson, Suite 900
Detroit, Michigan 48226
Telephone: 313-225-7037
Fax: 313-225-7080
e-mail: klimkojg@butzel.com

Michael K. Molitor
Professor
Western Michigan University Thomas M. Cooley 
Law School
Grand Rapids, MI
Telephone: 616-301-6800 ext. 6961
e-mail: molitorm@cooley.edu

February 20, 2023



1 

DEBTOR-CREDITOR RIGHTS COMMITTEE  
QUARTERLY REPORT PREPARED FOR THE 

 MARCH 9, 2023 BUSINESS COUNCIL MEETING

1. Next Scheduled Meeting of the Committee/Directorship. 

Next scheduled meeting of the Committee/Directorship will be in the 
Spring of 2023.  Leadership endeavors to meet on a monthly basis.   

2. Council Approval. 

The Committee seeks approval from the Council to submit a letter to the 
Michigan Supreme Court about proposed revisions to new Michigan Court 
Rule 2.421 that requires the giving of notice to a state court in a pending 
matter when one of the parties files a bankruptcy (the “Letter”).  The rule, 
as originally proposed, was broader than what the Committee thought was 
appropriate and caused the Committee concerns that, upon the filing of a 
notice, a state court might stay the pending matters not only with respect 
to the debtor, but also as to non-debtor affiliated parties (such as directors 
and officers), beyond what the Bankruptcy Code provides as relates to the 
reach of the automatic stay.   

While notice has generally been given in the past to the state court when a 
party subject to pending litigation files or becomes subject to a bankruptcy 
petition, no formal rule previously existed.  While we support the adoption 
of a rule to formalize the giving of notice, the rule must be tailored to be 
consistent with the requisites of the Bankruptcy Code and not create 
unintended consequences. 

Several comments have been sent to the Supreme Court by Trent Collier, 
Paul Hage, Michael Leib and David Findling, all of which agree that the 
proposed rule, as drafted, is overbroad. 

The Board of Commissioners has endorsed Trent Collier’s comments, 
while not identical to the mark-up of the rule submitted by Paul Hage and 
endorsed by Michael Leib, are quite similar and seem to generally address 
the Committee’s concerns. 

While the formal comment period for commenting on the proposed rule 
expired on February 1st, nevertheless, the Committee believes that it is 
important that the Committee take a position on the proposed rule based 
on the experience and knowledge of the members of the Committee and 
the importance of this rule to bankruptcy practitioners and litigators. 

The Committee is seeking approval of the Letter (previously forwarded to 
Mark Kellogg and noticed out to the members of the Council as part of this 



2 

meeting).  If the Council approves the Letter, the Committee requests that 
the Council seek authorization from the State Bar, consistent with the 
public policy requirements of the State Bar, to transmit the letter to the 
Supreme Court.   

A public administrative hearing to consider the proposed rule has been 
scheduled by the Supreme Court for March 22nd at 9:30 a.m. The notice of 
the public hearing requires parties that wish to speak at the hearing to 
reserve a place on the agenda by notifying the Office of Administrative 
Counsel by e-mail at ADMcomment@courts.mi.gov no later than Friday, 
March 17, 2023.   Thus, we request that expedited authority from the State 
Bar for the Letter and appearance by representatives of the Committee at 
the public hearing be sought at the conclusion of the Council meeting so 
that we can get the Letter transmitted to the Supreme Court in advance of 
the hearing and register to reserve a place on the agenda at the hearing to 
articulate our position to the Supreme Court.   

Judy Miller will be attending the Council meeting to present the Letter to 
the Council and to respond to any questions that members of the Council 
may have. 

3. Membership.

Committee leadership is currently as follows: 

Marc N. Swanson, Co-Chair 
Judith Greenstone Miller, Co-Chair 
Paul R. Hage, Co-Vice Chair 
Elliot G. Crowder, Co-Vice Chair 
Judy B. Calton, Emeritus Chair 

The Committee regularly submits its quarterly and annual reports to the 
Council and communicates with members regarding important issues.   

The Committee recently reached out to the membership to solicit their 
opinions on proposed new MCR 2.421.  In response to the email, the 
Committee received several comments from members of the Committee, 
all supporting the changes to the new proposed rule, as set forth in the 
Letter.  See Response to Question 2. 

In addition, the Committee has advised its members about the status of 
the Business Section’s amicus brief in Soaring Pine Capital Real Estate 
and Debt Fund II, LLC v. Park Street Group Realty Services, LLC, Park 
Street Group, LLC, and Dean J. Groulx (Supreme Court Case No. 
163320), presently pending before the Michigan Supreme Court.  See 
Response to Question 6. 



3 

Finally, the Committee is reaching out to its members to solicit articles for 
the March 2024 edition of the Business Law Journal.  See Response to 
Question 5. 

4. Accomplishments Toward Committee/Directorship Objectives. 

See Responses to Questions 1-3, and 5-7. 

5. Meetings and Programs.

The Committee holds meetings regularly throughout the year, at 
approximate two-month intervals and regularly submits reports to the 
Council.  The Committee endeavors to include virtual attendance options 
for all meetings so as to ensure a large geographic reach for membership.   

The Committee held a meeting on February 14, 2023 by Zoom for 
membership where topics included proposed amendments to the Michigan 
Court Rules, recent amendments to the Local Rules for the United States 
District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, new guidance from the 
United Sates Department of Education regarding discharging student 
loans in bankruptcy, and a case law update.  The Committee also solicited 
authors and editors for articles to be submitted for the March 2024 
Business Law Journal.  The Committee also suggested doing an 
educational program as part of its next meeting.  

In addition, at the February 14th meeting, the Committee requested 
support from the members in attendance to take the position set forth in 
the Letter.  See Response to Question 2.  At the meeting, all members in 
attendance, as listed below, approved the Committee taking the position in 
the Letter and delegated the preparation and approval of the Letter to the 
leadership of the Committee.  All of the signatories to this Report 
approved the letter.   

The following members attended the February 14th meeting and approved 
taking the position in the Letter: 

 Elliot Crowder 
 Mike Fleming 
 Lisa Hall 
 Brendan Best 
 Clay Ottoni 
 Craig Schoenherr 
 Rozanne Giunta 
 Paul Hage 
 Hank Knier 



4 

 Joe Brown 
 Judy Calton  
 Judy Miller 
 David Lerner  
 Marc Bakst  
 Michael Leib 
 Richardo Kilpatrick 
 Scott Wolfson  
 Richard Sundquist  
 Marc Swanson  
 Thomas Richardson  
 Andrew Worrall  

No one in attendance at the February 14th meeting opposed the action 
proposed to be taken by the Committee. 

6. Publications.

Two of the leaders of the Committee – Judith Greenstone Miller and Judy 
B. Calton – are currently co-chairing an Amicus Briefing Committee for the 
Council in connection with preparing and submitting an amicus brief to the 
Michigan Supreme Court in the matter of Soaring Pine Capital Real Estate 
and Debt Fund II, LLC v. Park Street Group Realty Services, LLC, Park 
Street Group, LLC, and Dean J. Groulx (Supreme Court Case No. 
163320).  The brief generally addresses whether a usury saving clause is 
void as a matter of public policy.  The amicus brief was prepared, 
approved by the Council and filed with the Supreme Court in December 
2022.   

A hearing on the appeal was held on January 12, 2023.  Fawzeith H. 
Daher, a member of the appellate practice at Bodman, who worked on the 
amicus brief, reported as follows about the hearing:

Turning to the argument today, most of the argument (on both 
sides) concerned the usury-savings clause issue and what 
approach the Court should take.  

From the outset, Justice Welch peppered counsel for Park Street 
with questions regarding the sophistication of the borrower, the fact 
that excess payments would reduce principal, the concern with 
variable-rate notes, and the issue raised in our brief regarding 
enforceability opinions. Counsel for Park Street argued that the 
parties’ sophistication should not affect the Court’s decision 
because the Legislature did not make such a distinction and, 
instead, the statute focuses on the lender’s obligations. Counsel 
argued that if the Court was not inclined to enforce a bright-line 



5 

rule, then usury-savings clauses should only be enforceable in 
situations where a loan’s stated rate does not exceed the legal 
maximum, but long-term contingencies render the loan usurious. In 
other words, only where the loan is pegged to an interest rate or 
federal rate that is truly outside the parties control. She argued that 
was not the case here.  

Counsel for Soaring Pine argued that the Court should adopt a 
case-by-case approach as other states have, where usury-savings 
clauses can be relied upon when a note is not usurious on its face. 
Justice Welch thought this was reasonable. Counsel also argued 
that usury law is very large and complicated, and the parties should 
be able to rely on these clauses for assurance that they have 
complied with usury law.  

Overall, one factor the Justices were interested in was how parties’ 
sophistication status affected the use of usury-savings clauses. 
Justice Welch was concerned with the fact that the party’s 
sophistication is not something addressed or contemplated in the 
statute. Justice Clement asked where the line should be drawn in 
determining whether a party is ‘sophisticated’ or not. 

After oral arguments were completed, the Court took the matter under 
advisement.  If anyone is interested in watching the argument in full, the 
Court usually posts recordings on its YouTube page a day or so after the 
hearing.  For now, the only thing left is to await the Court’s order. We will 
let you know when we receive it.  

The Committee has begun the process of soliciting articles and editors for 
the March 2023 edition of the Business Law Journal of the State Bar of 
Michigan for which the Committee is responsible.  Emeritus Chair Judy B. 
Calton is leading this process.   

7. Methods of Monitoring Legislative/Judicial/Administrative 
Developments and Recommended Action

The Committee regularly reviews proposed amendments to the 
Bankruptcy Code, Rules of Federal Bankruptcy Procedure and state rules 
and laws germane to the interests of the Committee. The Committee has 
been actively involved in the development of the Michigan Receivership 
Act and the Michigan Uniform Assignment of Rents Act and has been 
asked to provide comment on potential amendments to the Michigan 
exemption and fair debt collection statutes.   

The Committee has reviewed and provided comments to the Michigan 
Supreme Court regarding Proposed New Michigan Court Rule 2.421, 



6 

which proposes to require that notice be provided to state courts when a 
party filed a bankruptcy.  The Committee’s comments also included 
suggested revisions to the proposed Court Rule and provided separate 
communications from membership regarding the proposed Court Rule.   
See Response to Question 2.  

The Committee has also created a sub-committee to review the present 
Michigan Court Rules regarding receiverships (MCR 2.622, et al.) to 
assess and to ascertain whether amendments are necessitated in light of 
the Michigan Receivership Act and amendments thereto.  Michael Leib is 
going to chair the Subcommittee created by the Committee to review the 
receivership rules and to report to the Committee on if amendments are 
needed. 

8. Miscellaneous.

N/A 

Respectfully submitted; 

Marc N. Swanson, Co-Chair 
Judith Greenstone Miller, Co-Chair 

Paul R. Hage, Co-Vice Chair 
Elliot G. Crowder, Co-Vice Chair 
Judy B. Calton, Emeritus Chair 








































